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The 1 lonorable Larry Hogan 
(lovemor of Maryland 
Office of the Governor 
Slate House 
Annapolis. tv1D 21401 

The: Honorable Terry McAulifti: 
Governor of Virginia 
Office of the Governor 
State ( 'apitol 
Richmond. \!A 23219 

The Honorable Muriel Bowser 
Mayor of District of Columbia 
John A. Wilson Building 
I 350 Pi.!nnsylvania Avenue 
Washington. DC 20004 

Dear Governor Hogan. Governor tvkAulifk. and l'v1ayor Bowser: 

ln <ktoher 2015. under the authority granted the Federal Transit Administration ( FTA) in the 
~foving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act ( MAP-21 ). FTA assumed a direct safety 
oversight role of the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (Wiv1ATJ\ ). The FTA 
issued Sati:ty Directive 16- l. which realigns the work that the Tri-State Oversight Committee 
(l"OC) will perfi)fm under the direction of FTA and identifies responsibilities FTA has assumed 
to carry out the State Safety Oversight Program (SSOP) requirements under current federal lav ..1• 

On December 4. 2015. President Obama signed into law the Fixing America· s Surface 
Transportation ( r: AST) Act. The FAST Act includes additional authorities frlr FTA related to 
on:rsight of SSOPs. The purpose of this letter is to affirm FTA. s role in providing direct safety 
oversight of WMATA. and to inform you that FTA finds the TOC is incapahk of pnn·iding 
adequate safety O\'ersight consistent with the prevention of substantial risk of death or personal 
rn.1ury. 
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Under 49 U.S.C. ~ 5329(e}(8). as amended by the FAST Act: 

(A) In Gencral.-If the Secretary determines that a State safety oversight program is not 
being carried out in accordance with this section. has become inadequate to ensure the 
enforcement of Federal safety regulation. or is incapable of providing adequate safety 
oversight consistent with the prevention of substantial risk of death. or personal injury. 
the Secretary shall administer the State safety oversight program until the eligible State 
develops a State safety oversight program certified by the Secretary in accordance with 
this subsection. 
(B) Temporary Federal Ovcrsight.-----In making a determination under subparagraph (A). 

the Secretary shall­
(i) transmit to the eligible State and affected recipient or recipients. a written 
explanation of the determination or subsequent finding. including any intention to 
withhold funding under this section. the amount of funds proposed to be withheld. 
and if applicablt!. a frmnal notice of a withdrawal of State safely oversight 
program approval: and 
(ii) require the State to submit a State salety oversight program or modi tication 
for certification by the Secretary that meets the requirements of this subsection. 

The TOC is incapable of providing adequate safct)' oversight of WMATA 

In response to concerns regarding WMATA ·s safoty pcrfrmnance. in iv1arch and April of 2015. 
FTA conducted an organization-wide Safety Management fnspcction (Si\11) of the \Vf\1ATA rail 
and bus systems. As a result of this SMI. FTA issued Safety Directive 15-1 to \\'M,1\TA that 
identified 78 corrective actions to be implemented for ~v1etrorail and 13 corrective actions to be 
implemented for Metrobus. 

On September 30. 2015. in response to the January 12. 2015. smoke and arcing incident al the 
L ·Enfant Plaza station. in which one person was killed and 86 were injured. the National 
Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) issued urgent recommendation R-15-31 to the U.S. 
Depai1ment of Transportation to seek statutory authority to authorize the Federal Railroad 
:\dministration to exercise regulatory oversight of WMATA. This urgent recommendation was 
due to the ..continued failure of the Tri-State Oversight Committee (rOC) to pro\·idc effccti\·c 
safety oversight of the Washington Metropolitan Arca Transportation Authority:· 

The results of FTA · s Safety Management Inspection. coupled with the NTSB recommendation. 
prompted the Secretary of Transportation to direct FTA to exercise its authority to directly 
O\'crscc WMATA ·s safety and administer the TOCs State Sal~ty On:rsight Program. 

As part of FTA ·s direct safety oversight of WMATA. we reviewed the TOCs open safety 
findings for \VMA TA. We found that the TOC had issued 217 safety findings to \Vtv1ATA since 
2008 that remained open. meaning they had not been addressed adetgiately by WMATA. 
On December 15. 2015. FTA issued Safety Dirccti\·c I 6-2 to \Vi'v1ATA. requiring WivtATA to 
address the TOC s open findings. 
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Pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5329(e)(8). FTA finds that the inability of the TOC to enforce its 
findings demonstrates that it remains incapabh: of providing adequate safety oversight consistent 
with prevention of substantial risk of death or personal iqjury. and thus fTA will continue to 
administer the State safety oversight program over wrv1ATA. 

FTA's administration of the SSOP is temporary 

In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5329(e)(8)(13) and consistent with prior correspondence. FTA ·s 
provision of safety oversight for WMATA is temporary. The FTA \Viii continue the safety 
oversight role only until the State of Maryland. the Commonwealth of Virginia. and the District 
of Columbia establish a State Safety Oversight Agency capable of carrying out a State Safety 
Oversight Program that is compliant with current Federal law. Pursuant to 49 U.S.C. * 
5329( c)( 8)(13 )(ii). the three jurisdictions must submit a State Safety Oversight Program for 
certi tication to FTA that meets Federal requirements. 

Failure to Correct 

Pkasc be advised that if the jurisdictions fai I to submit a State Safety (hcrsight Program. or if 
FTA detcnnincs that a submitted program is not suflicicnt to meet Federal requirements for 
certification. 49 U.S.C. ~ 5329(e)(8)(C) provides FTA a variety of remedies: 

{i) \Vithhold funds available under paragraph ( 6) Igrants to States to develop or 
carry out SSOPs] in an amount determined by the Secretary~ 

(ii) beginning 1 year after the date of the determination. withhold not more than 5 
percent of the amount required to be appropriated for use in a State or an 
urbanized area in the State under section 5307. until the State safety oversight 
program or modification has been ccrti ficd; and 

(iii) use any other authorities authorized under this chapter considered necessary 
and appropriate. 

( lin~n FTA · s dctt!nnination that the TOC' s Stale Safety Oversight Program is inadequate. the 
State of ~v1aryland. the Commonwealth of Virginia. and the District of Columbia must receive 
FTA certification of a new State Safety Oversight Program - which includes creation of a new 
State Safety Oversight Agency compliant with Federal requirements - within one year from 
tl1day· s dctcnnination. If the State of Maryland. the Commonwealth of Virginia. and the District 
of Columbia foil to do so by February 9. 2017. FTA is prepared to withhold 5307 fomrnla funds 
an<l take other appropriate action. as set fo11h above. 
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Conclusion 

The FTA has provided and will continue to provide technical assistance to the jurisdictions as 
they work to develop a new State Safety Oversight Agency, the Metropolitan Safety Commission 
(MSC). I look forward to your continued efforts to establish the MSC expeditiously. 

Sincerely yours. 

Therese W. l\/lcMillan 
Acting Administrator 

cc: 	 Leif Don11Sjo, Director. District of Columbia Department of Transportation 
Pete Rahn. Secretary. Maryland Department of Transportation 
Aubrey Layne Secretary. Virginia Department of Transportation 
Chuck Bean. Executive Director. Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments 


